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FOREWARD 
 

 
The Salem County Clerkõs Office proudly presents the 
first edition of òChurches of Salem County, New Jer-
seyó.    
 
It is evident that the churches of  Salem County were the 
basis for the evolution and foundation of  our beloved 
county.  The early religious sects who established the 
roots of  their American  heritage are also responsible for 
the various denominations and our historic worship cen-
ters.  The immigrants who came to our Salem County 
shores in the 1600õs to 1800õs  provided the basis for our 
beautiful and serene communities.   
 
The information in this book was generously provided 
by the Pastors and Membership of  more than  fifty reli-
gious organizations featured in this edition.  We are 
deeply grateful to all who participated in this endeavor. 
Accordingly, we dedicate this book to all of  them.    
 
 

Thank you.          
 

Gilda T. Gill,  
Salem County Clerk 
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The Church of 

Our Merciful Savior 
100 East Maple Avenue 
Penns Grove, NJ 08069 

(856) 299-6038 
 

Pastor: Rev. Petrina Pyatt 
 

òNow dear to me is your dwelling O Lord of Hostsé. 
Happy are they who Dwell in your house! 
They will always be praising youé. 

òPsalm 84ó 

 
 The Church of Our Merciful Savior began its worshipping life in a tent in a cornfield. 
 Sunday, July 11, 1915, the Rev. Charles Bratten DuBell began with a full dayôs program: 
Holy Communion at 8:00 AM, Morning Service and Sermon at 10:30 AM, Sunday School at 2:00 
PM and an Evening Service and address at 7:00 PM.  This was all held in a tent located at ñNorth 
Riverview Villageò (Which is currently the site of the Lafayette-Pershing Elementary School).  
This was according to a circular advertising the great event.  In that circular, they solicited for a 
choir, 
 òAll those willing to help in the Choir are asked to meet the Rev. Mr. Dubell, in the 

Tent, on Saturday Evening, July 10th, at 7PM sharp, for practicing.ò 

 
 They threw in a ñSong and Preaching Serviceò at 5:30 PM at ñCAMP No.2é.THE MEN 
AT THE CAMP ARE INVITED TO ATTEND.ò 

 Before the World War, the handful of Episcopalians in the sleepy river town of Penns 
Grove had worshipped at historic St. Georgeôs Church in Pennsville.  However, the wartime influx 
of workers and management for the new DuPont plants in Carneys Point swelled the population so 
that the new churches were being established all over town to accommodate the new arrivals. 

 During the American industrial boom of the latter nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, 
skilled and semi-skilled workers were recruited, especially in Britain, to staff these mushrooming 
industries.  As part of social engineering to insure the ñcivilityò (read: docile and orderliness) of 
their workers, many plant owners sought to establish churches, along with social and recreational 
clubs, adult schools, etc. ïall the infrastructure of óCivic Bettermentô.  Owners, naturally, tended to 
establish churches of their own denominations.  Throughout the American northeast and Midwest 
are scattered Episcopal Churches of this nature, established primarily to serve the needs of the ar-
riving waves of skilled and semi-skilled English, Scottish, and Ulster-Scots immigrant factory 
workers.  The Church of Our Merciful Savior is one of these churches. 

 According to the recollections of the founding priest, the Rev. Mr. Charles Bratten Dubell 
(Published in the parishôs 1927 Year Book & Directory), the church began through a chance meet-
ing.  In early 1915, while Rev. Dubell was serving in Glassboro, he ñwent to Carneys Point to se-
cure, if possible, a position for one of the vestrymen of St. Thomasô Church, Glassboro, and wait-
ed at the gate of Plant 1 of the big smokeless powder plant of the DuPont's, which later on em-
ployed upwards of 17,000 men, but failed to gain an entrance.ò 

 Clearly, not a man to give up easily, the Rev. Mr. Dubell left the plant and ñcrossed the 
Delaware River to Wilmington, the city of my birth" and went to the DuPont offices to see ñmy 
classmate from the University of Pennsylvania, Mr. Francis I. DuPont.ò  While DuBellôs class-
mate, Francis, was not in his office, ñbut by singularly good fortune, I found his brother, Mr. Felix 
A. DuPont,ò who was able to suggest to him who he should see at the plant to arrange the employ-
ment.  However, says DuBell,  

ñ...just as I was about to leave, [he] called me back to his desk, and told me that 
he had been thinking seriously of starting a work at Carneys Point, in connection 
with the Delaware Diocese, with the hope of ultimately raising sufficient funds to 
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build a church for the powder workers, but he realized the work would actually 
come under the jurisdiction of the New Jersey Diocese, and if I would bring this 
matter to the attention of those in authority, he would be very grateful.ò 

 Shortly thereafter the young preist brought this news to a meeting of the Convocation of the 
Diocese in which he worked, ñand the Bishop of New Jersey and the Dean and other members  of 
the Convocation heartily endorsed the movementò -- no doubt delighted anticipating a hefty contri-
bution from the DuPont Family.  Then, in a classic Biblical tradition of the disciplesô choosing a 
replacement for the departed Judas, the Convocation Members ñcast forth their lots as to who 
should undertake this work, and the lot fell upon me.ò  (It surely didnôt hurt, of course, that he was 
the one with the personal connection with the DuPont Family, and could be expected to sustain Mr. 
Felix DuPontôs fortuitous interest in the project.) 
 In the usual manner of óchurch plantingsô (as these church start-ups are commonly called), 
they began by enlisting ña group of faithful laymen,ò who met with Mr. DuBell and his august sen-
ior colleague, 

ñ...the Rev. Ellison J. Perot, Rector of St. Johnôs Church, Salem,...on the porch of 
the DuPont Club House, near the banks of the Delaware, and in spirit of prayer 
and devotion to God formed a committee and elected officers and approved of the 
chosen missionary, and thus the work began.ò 

 In his memoir, Dubell waxes eloquent about the first tent service, attended by ña little group 
of earnest, devoted peopleò who ñconsecrated their lives afresh to God.ò  He writes even more 
glowingly about the tent itself, which he envisions as a direct descendant of the ñTabernacle in the 
wilderness, a dwelling place for Jehovahéò 

 By autumn, of course, the tent was too cold, and so they sought warmer space: a frame 
building ñerected on a better site than where the tent had stood.ò  This site seems to be where the 
present Rectory sits (Maple Avenue), on a piece of property donated by The DuPont Corporation.  
The architect for this modest building was Robeson Lea Perot, of Philadelphia--likely a relative of 
the Rev. Ellison J. Perot, the St. Johnôs, Salem, rector who was the senior churchman among the 
founding leadership. 

 This single building housed all the church events, from worship to ñsocial and educational 
meetings.ò  Dubell writes fondly of ñthe evenings of strong comradeship and good cheer that men 
from all walks of life spent togetherò and ñthe important undertakings in the welfare of men.ò  All 
was not, however, smooth sailing for the newly planted church.  According to Mr. Dubell: 

Things had not been going very well with us, the congregations were very small, 
and only a few were bearing the burden and the heat of each day, and my own 
services were not measuring up to that standard which the powder interests had 
expected. 

 One can only imagine the ódisappointmentô murmured over tea or sherry, ever so genteelly 
intimating to the beleaguered Mr. Dubell just how his ñservices were not measuring up to that 
standard which the powder interestsò --no longer his old university classmates, his buddies the 
DuPont brothers, but ôthe powderô -- ñhad expectedò. 

 In fact, he confesses that he ñwas fearfully worried, and many a sleepless night I spent and 
not a few were the times when my eyes were moist with tears.ò  In view of the standard tone of 
memoirs like this, which tends to hearty affirmation of steady success and a discreet  silence about 
any cloud on the horizon, such an admission of troubles suggest that the ódisappointmentô of the 
ópowder interestsô must have been pretty considerable.  In fact, though ñthe Bishop was very full of 
very sympathetic understanding and so was the Archdeacon,ò after ñeight or nine monthsò they 
were beginning to discuss whether it would be better for Mr. Dubell to leave and ñlet another take 
up the work.ò 

 Then a calamity struck, and, as has so often happened throughout the centuries of Christian 
History, it breathed new life into the church.  There was a devastating explosion at the powder 
plant, in which fourteen men died.  And Mr. Dubell was right there, on the spot.  He had been visit-
ing workers at the plant very near where the explosion occurred, and was able to administer last 
rites to all but one of the fourteen men before they died.  Afterward, he seems to have been tireless 
in ferrying back and forth to Wilmington to visit the other casualties in the hospital -- including Pat 
Carrigan, who had survived the sinking of the Titanic, only to die in the explosion at the powder 
plant.  People around took notice as he tells the story: 
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ñWell, after this explosion,, men came up to me and said, óWe did not know that the 
Church was interested in men this way.  Here is a hundred dollars for your work and 
for the new Church which we hear you are planning to buildé.Hereôs five hundred 
dollarsô and this from a Roman Catholic.  And so the money began to pour in.  A 
thousand dollars from a devoted churchman, two thousand from a consecrated lay-
man and his wife, and the offer of five thousand dollars if we raised one-fifth of that 
amount from amongst the powder workers themselves.ò 

 This last, the offer  of five thousand dollars, was an anonymous contribution, and Mr. 
Dubell insists in his memoir that ñno one has as yet found out [the identity of the giver] from me 
and to no one shall I betray the confidence that was placed in me as long as life lasts.ò 

 The thousand dollar matching money was raised ñin a short timeò from among the work-
ers.  In fact, according to Mr. Dubell: 

...if I remember aright, every department of the whole plant was represented by 
many givers, and of the traffic department of over four hundred men, every man 
gave, with the exception of one.  He said that he had nothing against the particular 
Church that we were asking money for to help build, but he just wasnôt interested in 
any Church, and so would not give to this one. 

He goes on, not altogether joking: 

Well, as a bit of pleasantry there is a sad ending to be recorded touching this manôs 
experience.  Within two or three daysô time he was hit on the head  by a falling 
brick from one of the buildings and lodged in jail for some misdemeanor, and the 
moral is: óIf anyone ever asks you to contribute toward the building of a Church, 
donôt hesitate for an instant even, for what has already happened to one man might 
happen to another.ô 

 Over the years the closely-guarded secret identity of the five thousand dollar donor has 
been thought to be A.J. Dunn, a senior manager at the powder plant and one of the ñgroup of faith-
ful laymenò who had first met to found the church.  He served many years as Senior Warden of 
Our Merciful Savior, and his many other good works in the community were later memorialized 
by Dunnôs Park, the focal point of so much civic life in Carneys Point.  The identities of the other 
donors and the exact amounts are lost to history -- except for Mr. A. Felix DuPont, who gave the 
sanctuary and all of its appointments. 
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New Life Worship Center 
80 South Hook Road 
Pennsville, NJ 08070 

(856) 678-4539 
 

Pastor Lane Howard 
 

 New Life Worship Center was formed in January of 2003, with 25 members.  We were for-
mally known as Apostolic Lighthouse Church.  Our first service was held in the rear of the Church-
town Book Store on Churchtown Road in Pennsville during January 2003.  After worshiping in the 
book store for three weeks, we felt we needed something larger and rented the Bethany Assembly 
of God Church on Fox Road in Woodstown, NJ.  We held our services in Woodstown from Late 
January of 2003 until 2010.  We then moved to The Queen of Apostles Church Fellowship Hall in 
Pennsville, NJ and stayed in this location until September of 2013 when we purchased Woods Out-
door World on Hook Road.  We made renovations to the building to accommodate our ministry and 
it is now our home. 
 Our attendance is between 70 and 100 people every Sunday and 50 to 60 people on 
Wednesday evenings for our Bible Study and our ñKids Konnectionò.  When we moved into our 
permanent location we took on our new name, ñNew Life Worship Centerò. 
 Our pastor is Pastor Lane Holland and he ministers to our congregation along with his wife 
Becky and their children Dylan and Dalton.  Our Assistant Pastor is Rev. Steven Griffith and his 
wife Dollis and their children Mason and Makayla. 
 Our service times are Sunday Morning Worship Service at 11:30 AM and on Wednesday 
Evenings our Bible Study is at 7:30 pm, with classes for all ages.  We are a thriving church commu-
nity with a variety of age groups from young children to older adults.  We have several ministries in 
our church such as Kids Konnection, Youth, Bible Quizzing, Ladies and Menôs Ministries. 
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Holy Temple Church 
of the 

Fresh Harvest 
44 Willis Avenue 

Penns Grove, NJ 08069 
(856) 299-5251 

 
 

 Located in Penns Grove, New Jersey, Holy Temple Church of the Fresh Har-
vest has always been on the cutting edge with a purpose to build a God given vision, 
proclaim Jesus Chris as Lord and grow together with the community in its heart. 

 The history of the Holy Temple Church began in 1928 when founder, Elder 
Ella Holloway, established a Pentecostal Church in Penns Grove.  This church at that 
time was named, Church of the Living God; which was also the name of the organiza-
tion to which its fellowship was affiliated with..  In those early days, the congregation 
actually worshiped at a private property located on Virginia Avenue.  After the church was established 
for a number of years, Elder Ella Holloway and the members of the congregation, which included 
members of her immediate family, began to seek another property with the intent of building their 
own church building for the congregation. 

 At the corner of Willis and  Cumberland Avenues, where a cabbage patch was situated, a 
property was purchased with a new church building soon to follow.  The congregation began to be-
come a spiritual influence to the Penns Grove community as the services were filled with the excite-
ment and fervor of a traditional Pentecostal church.  After many years of dedicated labor, Elder Hol-
loway passed and the church, over several years, began to experience many changes in its search for a 
pastor.  Over the following years, the church would be pastured by several men, each in succession of 
the other, unfortunately without much success. 

 In 1953, the Presiding Bishop of the Church of the Living God, Inc. appointed a young, gifted 
and vibrant woman, Elder L. Colene Williams, from Philadelphia to the Pastorate at the Church of the 
Living God in Penns Grove.  Elder Williams accepted this appointment from the Bishop and set out 
to be faithful in her charge.  Upon her arrival at the church on the first Sunday of September in 1953, 
she found the church had suffered religious splits among the congregation.  This coupled with a small 
building with no indoor plumbing or heating gave Elder Williams a great challenge to rebuild both 
faith and structure. 

 Elder Williams began immediately to conduct revivals in order to build faithfulness in Penns 
Grove to bring those members back into the church as well as to reach out into the people of the 
community with her message.  From that day until her passing in 1996, modern conveniences were 
installed in the church building along with additions to the building.  The congregation grew in vision, 
numbers and outreach.  Also, during Elder Williams tenure as Pastor, The Holy Temple Church be-
came very active in various community activities, whether sponsored by the church or in partnership 
with the Penns Grove Union of Churches, The Penns Grove School District, the Salem County Unit-
ed Way and other community and religious entities. 

 Eventually, the church elected to change its name to the Holy Temple Church.  As the Holy 
Temple Church, the church became actively engaged in the community and social issues by establish-
ing the first church sponsored day care center called the Penns Grove Day Care Center.  The Holy 
Temple Church also purchased the adjacent property to the church in order to construct a community 
center.  With this building the church is able to sponsor community outreach venues including a drug 
abuse outreach program, summer camp, Five-Mile òWalks for Christó,  supported mission in both 
Africa and Jamaica.  The music ministry of the church eventually began to evolve and bring to Penns 
Grove national Gospel music recording artists such as Shirley Caesar, Dorothy Love Coats and the 
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  Gospel Harmonetts, Isaac Douglas, Myrna Summers, J.C. and Gloria White, The Institutional Radio 
Choir, Timothy Wright, Youthful Praise, James Hall and Worship and Praise, Christian Artist Javen 
and many others. 

 During the decade of the 1980õs, Elder Williams was consecrated by the Church of the Living 
God, Inc. and blessed with the sacred office of Bishop.  Bishop Williams then began a campaign to 
build an entirely new, state-of-the-art edifice in which the congregation could worship.  This building 
was constructed in 1988 and stands to this day as a monument to her and the entire congregationõs 
faith.  The current building has served for various ecumenical services, Gospel Music live recordings, 
radio broadcasts and Christian telecasts heard by the multitudes.  

 After Bishop L. Colene Williams was taken into the arms of our Lord, the pastoral mantle was 
passed to Elder Courtney Pope who would continue to keep her legacy alive!  During Pastor Popeõs 
tenure as pastor, the Holy Temple Church of the Fresh Harvest has experienced one of its most phe-
nomenal membership growths and outreach missions.  This included being one of the first churches 
to partner with the Borough of Penns Grove for the Annual National Night Out Against Crime as 
well as the construction of the òBishop L. Colene Williams Community Center an 1996. 

 At the beginning of the 21st century, Holy Temple Church changed its name 
to The Holy Temple Church of the Fresh Harvest and serves as the headquarter 
church for the òFresh Harvest Ministries Fellowship of Churchesó.  Currently pas-
tured by Pastor Audrey Hope, Holy Temple Church reaches out through social me-
dia including its official website and Facebook Page.  As one of Penns Grove Bor-
oughõs founding Pentecostal Churches by tradition, it continues to be an enthusiastic 
congregation, serving both God and community by revealing who Jesus is, through 
his Word to the world. 
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Ebenezer United Methodist Church 
Established: 1790 

59 Main Street 
Auburn, NJ 08085 

(856) 299-5950 

Pastor: Robert Bret Walker 
 

 In the year 1790 a very enthusiastic group of people formed what became the Ebenezer Unit-
ed Methodist Church of Auburn.  It was on a very hot August afternoon in this year that Francis As-
bury stopped at the Seven Stars Tavern for refreshment.  The people gathered from the countryside 
for miles around.  He exhorted them to continue their worship and after preaching a soul-stirring ser-
mon, he appointed one of his preachers to look after the new field. 

 A church was built in September, 1790, near Sculltown 
(Auburn) in Gloucester County, on Oldmans Creek Road, 
about a mile off the Swedesboro-Auburn Road.  A cemetery 
now marks the spot where the first church stood.  Until 1825, 
when Friendship School was built, this church also served as 
the seat of learning.  The preacher was the teacher,  although 
unfortunately the only one on record is Noah Edwards. 

 The records show that the new Ebenezer Meeting 
House was officially incorporated, and certification duly filed, 
in the county office on September 3, 1840.  As far as we know, 

the name was chosen because of its meaningéóStone of Helpó.  Ground was purchased for eighty-
four dollars in Salem County where the Mary B. Farley School stands.  We shared our pastor with 
Center Square, Pedricktown,  Perkintown, and Bridgeport until 1864.  This was also the time that 
Sculltown became Auburn.   

 December 18, 1865, a committee of trustees was appointed to see about buying a lot in the 
village for the church.  Brothers Horner, Mattson, and Humphries reported the price of thirty dollars 
seemed too much, so they waited.   

 In 1899, the church  structure was built and then moved approximately one year later to where 
it stands today.  The need was seen for additional meeting room, resulting in the building of what was 
called our social hall.  This hall was not connected to the church at that time but in 1960, the social 
hall was brought up and connected to the church and was made into Sunday school rooms.  The base-
ment was made to serve as the social hall and the Sanctuary was remodeled at that time. 

 In February of 1991, we celebrated òOver 200 Years of Methodism in Auburnó with a special 
service visited by former pastors of the church, along with District Superintendent Harlan Baxter.  We 
were also fortunate to have Bishop Neil Irons present to deliver the sermon for this special occasion. 

 After months of planning, the social hall un-
derwent extensive, and much needed, renovations 
which were completed in 1993 using memorial funds 
from the Hunt and Kesler Families.  Hunt Hall and 
the Kesler Kitchen were dedicated in memory of 
these families at a special worship service on April 
25, 1993, followed by a breakfast in the new facilities. 

 Our church family has been blessed over the 
years with strong leadership from our pastors, 
friends and members of Ebenezer.  But above all, 
God has continued to be our strength as we contin-
ue to grow and minister to the community. 
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Second Baptist Church 
P.O. Box 74 

 26-28 Pennsville-Pedricktown Road 
Pedricktown, New Jersey 08067  

(856) 299-5144  

Pastor Rev. Kevin M. Peterson 
 On the first Sunday of June 1904, a Christian Group consisting of Lloyd Gray, Philip Frun-
tleroy, and Harvey Johnson started a prayer meeting in the home of John Smith with Rev. C.R. Over-
by as overseer and guide. They were incorporated as the Second Baptist 
Church in 1911. On July 20, 1911 and in 1918 purchased the Literary 
(Bushwack School) for $800.00 from Norman Layman, this building 
dated back to 1890.  

 The first pastor was a Rev. Coleman, Rev. W.W. Smith fol-
lowed him and under his leadership, five Deacons were ordained. 
Charles Holmes, Harry Harris, John Smith, Moses Braxton, and Harvey 
Johnson served as the first deacons. Two of the women were remem-
bered during these early days, Martha Fruntleroy and Mildred Broken-
baugh, whose descendants are active today. Rev. R.D. Smith and Rev. E.L. Satchell served with dis-
tinction and received recognition on national and state levels. Rev. Satchell served on the Hampton 
University Ministers Conference as board directors and Rev. R.D. Smith later became Moderator of 
Bethany Baptist Association of South Jersey in April 1940.  

 In the mist of a raging flood, Rev. King David Tunstall officially became pastor after being 
ordained by the Bethany Baptist Association, Rev. Tunstall, a man of great stature and strong faith 
lead this church to great heights far beyond the church expectation. He proved those things that 
seemed impossible to man were possible with God. The church began to take a new look during his 
tenure. The building was enlarged to include choir rooms, inside restrooms, baptism pool and a pas-
torõs study. In addition, a dining room and kitchen were added along with other improvements. The 
congregation continued to grow and Rev. Tunstall served God with a pure conscience until his pass-
ing in 1972. He served as President of Ebenezer Baptist Missionary Union during the states. He was 
succeeded by Rev. Ronald Johnson until 1976.  

 The church was led by the spirit to let their request be known for a pastor after Godõs own 
heart and was led to call the Rev. Edward W. Dorn as pastor on the second Sunday in August 1977. 
He has served this congregation well and under his pastorship, a new edifice was built and the first 
Sunday in May 1985 they entered their present church. This church grew spiritually, financially and 
numerically and is recognized nationally as a leading church. The church has as its focus a bible based, 
Christ-centered Ministry with Love of God and each other as its mission. Rev. Dorn has served both 
naturally and locally in many capacities and presently on the executive board of the Foreign Mission 
Board of USA Inc. He is a Past Moderator of Bethany Baptist Association, Past President of 
Ebenezer Baptist Missionary Union, Past President of the Ministers Conference of Woodbury and 
Vicinity. He was also elected Corresponding Secretary and Song Leader for the Moderators Depart-
ment of the National Baptist Convention, USA Inc. Under his direction and the perseverance of the 
church administrator Trustee Harvey Saunders, a New Faith-Based Corporation was formed and 
called the Calvary Community Development Corporation which has already received local, state and 
national recognition and is partial in developing the Whispering Waters Housing Complex as well as 

many other Faith-Based ventures. Rev. Dorn presently serves as a Commis-
sioner appointed to the Delaware River and Bay Authority since April 2003. 
In September 12, 2007, the congregation marched into the new 17,000 
square foot E.W Dorn Community Center where many social and spiritual 
programs are offered. His many awards and citations are too numerous to 
mention, but he has retained his humility as a servant of God. To God Be 
The Glory. 

Our First Church 
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 First Baptist Church at Pedricktown 
P.O. Box 117 

89 West Mill Street 
Pedricktown, NJ 08067 

(856) 299-2123 
Pastor: Rev. Dr. Merrit Marsango 

 
 The history of the First Baptist Church of Pedricktown begins in the year 1857 when German 
members of the Pedricktown community expressed a need for regular worship services and a place to 
have them.  Early accounts tell that worship sessions were held in 
the homes of Jacob Hess, Michael Trabold (later that name 
changed to Drabold), and Johannes Huber.  This was the start of 
what became known as the German Mission. 
 The first man to preach and gather within homes in Ped-
ricktown was a German cobbler by the name of Caspar Schlag, 
described as a òzealous Christian workeró.  He, as history tells it, 
loved to preach and he gave sermons that were two hours in 
length.  Services were listed from 10:30AM until 1:00PM. 
 Brother Schlag used to walk from his home in nearby 
Bridgeport to conduct services, which began in 1858.  Caspar 
Schlagõs work at Pedricktown was recognized and supported by 
the mother church, the First German Baptist Church of Philadel-
phia, which later became known as the Fleischman Memorial Baptist Church.  He preached faithfully 
to the Pedricktown German Mission for a number of years.  It is recorded that as a result of his work, 
souls were converted and numerous persons were baptized.  Records indicate that in 1857 Christina 
Huber was the first to be converted and baptized.  Christina Huber is remembered today by the large 
stained glass window in our sanctuary with Christ knocking at the door.   
 In old records there is evidence that the first chapel was built in 1859. The record book was a 
gift of Caspar Paulzinkyt and it list the new chapel's furnishings and their donors.  Finances were note-
worthy.  A financial report from March 5, 1862 shows a total of $57.29 taken in, $56.43 was paid out 
leaving a balance of 86¢. 
 The actual  organization of the church started on March 21, 1888. Thirty-one members of the 
mother church in Philadelphia withdrew their letter from that church to become the first members un-
der the new organizational structure of the Pedricktown Church.  Rev. Julius Berger of Philadelphia 
accepted the call as the churchõs first official pastor.  He was met at the Penns Grove Wharf by John 
Herti, Sr.  Mr. Herti carried with him a copy of the church paper òSenboteó, German for emissary) so 
he could be identified by Rev. Berger.  During Rev. Bergerõs Tenure, German services were held in the 
morning and English services in the evening.   
 In 1889 plena were discussed for the erection of a new church building.  Samuel Doughten was 
awarded the contract with a bid of $1,550.  The church had already collected $600 and through the 
convention the remainder of the $1,550was loaned with no interest charged.  The loan was paid off at 
the sum of $100 per year until the payments were complete. And a total of $200 was paid to Mr. & 
Mrs. John Herti, Sr. for the grounds on which the church was built. 
 Prior to the building of the new church, baptismal sites included  the Delaware River at 
Dolbowõs Landing, the gravel pit of Chalky Somers, and churches in Woodbury and Philadelphia.  It 
was not unusual to have ice broken in the waters in order to conduct the baptisms.  Once the new 
church building was constructed, the first person baptized was Louisa Huber (Gaventa).  She was bap-
tized by Rev. A.H. Sembowers of Salem. 
 On October 24, 1891, the church was legally incorporated as òThe First Baptist Church at Ped-
ricktownó.   J. Warren Davis, then a student at Crozier Seminary, succeeded Rev. Stump as pastor in 
1898 and it was during his stay that the church was rebuilt and rededicated at a cost of $5,000 in 1906.   

First Chapel 1859 
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OUR PASTORS 
 In 1913, the Rev. C.W. Deibert was called to the church to succeed Rev. Davis who withdrew 
from the ministry to practice law.  Rev. & Lottie Deibertõs daughter, Ruth Dietrich, became the church 
organist and served 50 years until she retired in the late 1970õs.   
 During Rev. Deibertõs stay at the Pedricktown Church, a catastrophic event took place in which 
the entire church was destroyed by fire on January 26, 1915.  The Churchõs worship hour and Sunday 
School times were not disrupted as services were held at Red Menõs Hall..  Through great sacrifice by 
its members, and at a cost of $20,000 the present stone edifice was built and dedicated, clear of all debt.  
On September 26, 1915, 372 persons attended the special dedication program, which was also part of 
Rally Day.  The following is the inscription on the Church Bell installed in the new Church Steeple:  
Troy Meneely N.J.ñFirst Baptist Church, Pedricktown, NJ -  We Preach CHRIST and HIM Crucified - 
Rev. C. William Deibert, D.D. Pastor -  Building Committee - Frank Gaventam Chairman - J. Warren Davis; Wil-
liam P. Cunard; George Gaventa; C. William Deibert, D.D.; William Huber. 
 In 1920, Rev Deibert announced that he had accepted a call to the Newport Baptist Church 
and was succeeded by Rev. George W. Tryon.  Upon Rev. Retirement in 1932 the Rev. S. Dan Morgan 
assumed the pulpit..  During Rev. Morganõs Pastorate the church realized it long dream of obtaining a 
Pipe Organ.  At that time the Church was renovated with a new interior coat of paint and a new carpet.  
The Church membership was 298 with the Sunday School attendance at 277.   
 The 80th anniversary of the church (Sept. 20 - 26, 1937) was observed with a week of special 
services  where former pastors were invited to come a speak.  During that celebration Frank Gaventa, 
who served as the Church Clerk for 29-years and Sunday School Superintendent for 35-years was  rec-
ognized for his dedication and service to the church. 
 In 1939, a native son, William Prigger, Jr. was licensed to preach as the church held its first or-
ganized missionary program.  Two years later, William Dietrich, a grandson of Pastor Deibert was also 
licensed to preach. 
 In 1942, the Rev. T. Paul Lorraine was called as pastor and served for eight months when he  
accepted a call as a chaplain in the U.S. Army.  The next year, February 1943, the Rev. John B. Peter-
son began his ministry at First Baptist which continued until 1948.  During his ministry, the church 
pledged their support for the Missionary Nengzachin, a missionary program in India.  Also, during 
Rev. Petersonõs tenure the church began recognizing their 50-year members. 
 Following Pastor Petersonõs ministry in 1948,  the church called the Rev. William Flood who 
pastured First Baptist until 1952, when he became a Chaplain in the U.S. Air Force and later headed 
the military segment of the American Baptist Convention at Valley Forge, PA. 
 The Rev. Leland H. Pease began his Pastorate in October of 1952.  The following year a Build-
ing Fund was established and Building Committee appointed in order to plan and construct a much 
needed Educational Building.  The following year the adjoining property was purchased and as part of 
the 100th Anniversary Year of 1957, we celebrated with a ground breaking ceremony for the construc-
tion of the $112,000 educational building/fellowship hall which was completed and dedicated in Octo-
ber of 1958.. 
 In 1961 the church welcomed the Rev. Ralph D. Wolfe.  During his pastorate a new parking lot 
was built and the high point of his ministry was the ringing of the Church Bell after attaining the goal 
of 100 people at the Mid-Week Prayer Meeting.   
 In 1963 Rev. Russell G. Martin, Jr. began his pastoral duties and served until he received a call 
to Calvary Baptist Church in Irwin, PA near Pittsburgh.  He was followed by Rev. Douglas M. Cotter 
who came to us from Manoa Baptist Church in Havertown, PA.  It was during his years as pastor that 
a long delayed project, the construction of a new parsonage, was completed.  It was located directly 
across the street from the church and in 1977 Rev. and Mrs. Cotter took up residency in their new 
home. 
 In 1979 Dr. Otto H. Zaiser began his service as our Interim Pastor.  He became the Sr. Pastor 
in 1980 and the church adopted an innovative team ministry concept.   Along with Dr. Zaiser, Paul 
Feiler served as  our Associate Pastor and Rich Bogart as youth director.  This team proved to be quite 
effective, as the church experienced substantial growth in attendance, particularly with Sunday Morning 
Worship, evening services and with the youth group.  In 1981 the Board of Christian Education was 
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created and charged with the supervision of the youth group, Vacation Bible School and camp pro-
grams. 
 In 1983 Kenneth Campbell, Jr. replaced Paul Feiler as Associate Pastor and was given the re-
sponsibility of working with the youth groups.  From this point on it became the Associate Pastorõs 
responsibility to work with the youth of our church. 
 In 1986 Ken Campbell was called as Pastor at Calvary Baptist Church in West Deptford, NJ 
and a year later, Dr. Zaiser retired from active ministry.  Graciously, former pastor Rev. John B. Peter-
son accepted the call to serve as Interim Pastor. 
 In January of 1988, Dr. Douglas Whittle, known as òPastor Dougó began his ministry and initi-
ated a number of programs geared toward young families and baby boomers.  Also in 1988, Margie 
OõKlatner joined First Baptist as our Pastoral Intern and was the first female ever to serve in a pastoral 
position at First Baptist Church in Pedricktown.  The next year in 1989 Dr. Whittle resigned as pastor 
and joined the administration of Eastern Baptist Theological Seminary.  Dr. Stanley Nodder, who 
served as interim pastor, replaced him. 
 The church then called Wayne Kershner as Pastor in 1990.  During his 13 year ministry, he ex-
hibited a great passion for evangelism and for training young men & women to assume responsibility 
for the gospel ministry.  In March of 1993, an important historical event occurred which allowed wom-
en to become members of the Board of Deacons for the first time.  Pastor Kershner continued the 
churchõs partnership with Eastern Baptist Theological Seminary which enabled David Oldham to serve 
as Pastoral Intern from 1991 thru 1994 when he became ordained to the gospel ministry.  David was 
succeeded by Jim Jitima in 1994 and a year later YaHa LayLayLa, who was born in Burma, was our in-
tern and upon completing his internship, returned to his native land to teach and preach the gospel.  
Following YaHa was Gordon Braun in 1996.  Gordon introduced the church to drama as a tool for 
worship and evangelism.  During his service the church presented òGodspelló and òRuth, the Musicaló.  
òRuth the Musicaló was written and performed entirely by members of the church.  Gordon was or-
dained and assumed a pastorate in North Jersey, and was replaced by Trent Eastman who worked with 
the youth of the church.  This continued until 2002 when Trent was ordained and assumed a pastorate 
in West Virginia. 
 During the ministry of Pastor Kershner, the church participated in òEvangelism Explosionó, 
the òSHAREó  program, ò50 Day Spiritual Adventuresó and active, well attended Lenten programs.  
The Home Discipleship Ministry commenced in 1994 with a group meeting in the home of Neil & 
Deanne Taylor.  During Pastor Kershnerõs tenure, First Baptist ordained, David Oldham, Jin Jitima, 
Gordon Braun, Trent Eastman, Jonathan Kershner, and Michael Jordan to the ministry.  Pastor Kersh-
ner retired from the ministry in 2002. 
 In a repeat of history, First Baptist Church at Pedricktown first employed Merrit Marsango as 
Interim Pastor and then called him as Pastor in 2004.  When Trent Eastman was ordained and depart-
ed for West Virginia we received Marion Crawford as our Pastoral Intern. 
 In 2005 First Baptist Church at Pedricktown discontinued services on Sunday Evenings due to 
lack of attendance, however, it was replaced by several òHome Discipleship Groupsó which meet on a 

weekly or bi-weekly basis.   
 From our humble begin-
nings to the present, God has built 
a solid foundation for the group of 
believers who meet at First Baptist 
Church.  It is our hope and prayer 
the we not rest on what God has 
done in the past but that we vigor-
ously pursue the vision God has 
given us for the future. 
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First United Methodist Church of Deepwater 
P.O. Box 117 

555 Broadway 
Deepwater, NJ 08023 

(856) 299-5534 
Pastor: Rev. Thomas J. Gilcrist, Sr. 

 
 The First United Methodist Church of Deepwater, NJ celebrated itõs 85th Anniversary during 2004.  The 
following is an excerpt from that anniversary celebration. 
 
 Much has been written about the churchõs beginning and how Mrs. Isaac Stretch, Miss Elsie 
Clark, Mrs. Laura Morganthal and Mr. & Mrs. Lewis Smith net one October  evening with the sole 
purpose of forming a church.  For a short time services were held in private homes, but then permis-
sion was obtained to hold both Church Services and Sunday School classes in the hotel situated on the 
property where the Deepwater School was later built.  This hotel belonged to The DuPont Company 
and was used to house workers and visiting business men.  We have nothing to substantiate the size of 
the hotel, etc., but those who remember tell us it was a very fine building complete with ballroom and 
all the elegant trappings of that period.  In lieu of a fire escape, there was a fire house type pole from 
the second floor to the first and we understand this was quite an attraction for the local youth. 
 We know the first minister was Rev Aspinwall and that he resided at 106 Washington Street, 
which is now Madison Street, but we donõt know how this group obtained his services.  Our records 
indicate that Rev, J.S.Moore was serving the congregations in both Deepwater and Carneys Point when 
the DuPont Company donated land for construction of similar church buildings in both areas.  Men 
from the Church and Community, under the direction of Charles òPoppyó Wetzel, constructed this 
building.  Sometime later the pews were constructed in the basement of the church by Joseph Harris 
who was assisted by the men and boys of the church. 
 Our records are not complete as one would like, but we did find that Gladys Herrman was the 
first person to be baptized in the new building in September of 1922.  We also know that the first bride 
was Hazel Humphrey who was married in 1923.  Sadly, she was also the first person to be buried from 
the church later that same year. 
 There are few here today who remember the kindness of little Miss Elsie, the wisdom of Aunt 
Lizzy Horley and the discipline of Mrs. Edna Laughlin.  And then there was Mrs. Morganthalõs class 
and her apple taffies that kept us returning each Sunday.  There were three families in Deepwater who 
kept our Sunday School Rooms full, The McGraws, the McAllisters and the Buckinghams.  We are 
happy to say that they are still very much part of our church and Sunday School.. 
 Some can recall Maude Davis playing gospel style piano before anyone had named it such, and  
We can remember the music of Charlie Hand who was called home much too soon.  We have not for-
gotten William Wetzelõs gift of music nor his willingness to fill the void left by Charlie. 
 We can recall the Ladies Aid soup sales, church dinners and strawberry festivals which were 
held on the shady side of the church.  The Ladies Aid activities always brought the church and commu-
nity together. 
 Since the church was enlarged and renovated in 1957, many changes have taken place in Deep-
water.  The old firehouse was razed when the new one was built in 1958, a new post office was con-
structed in 1961 and the old one became a private residence.  Johnõs Hotel and Deli are no longer there 
and the Shoemakerõs shop is gone.  Dataõs is Travagliniõs, Oliveroõs became Bongavonniõs and is now a 
Pizza place, Seven Brotherõs Grocery Store is now an apartment building and the Deepwater School 
has been replaced by the Deepwater Industries Credit Union.  Through all of these changes, First Unit-
ed Methodist Church of Deepwater still remains the same! 
 Many names have surfaced while we were preparing for this day.  In addition to the founders, 
there were the Gibsons, Armstrongs, Locusons, Dares, Herrmans, Genays, Cannons, Hathaways, Jog-
gards, Buskirks, and others whose family members are still active in our church.  All of these people 
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have kept our church afloat through the lean years. 
 I look back and fondly remember the Christmas entertainments that brought so much joy and 
anxious moments, as the children nervously recited their Peaces and sang together those cherished 
Christmas Carols.  We have not left this memory behind, in fact; our Sunday School continues this 
program under the leadership of Mrs. Kim Roberts. 
 Today as Deepwater United Methodist Church is celebrating our 85th anniversary, five years 
have passed since our last celebration.  We are still growing as we welcome new members into our con-
gregation.  Programs are being introduced and carried out with vim and vigor along with existing pro-
grams such as Vacation Bible School, Monthly Sunday Night Hymn Sings under the direction of Mr. 
Bill Walsh, and Circle of Friends.  Our own Nancy Headley graduated from Lay Speaker School in 
June of 2001 and the graduation was held at St. Andrews United Methodist Church in Cherry Hill, NJ. 
 We have lost some very special people since our last anniversary, Ann Hemenway, Alice Rhine-
hart, Ray Johnson, Mildred Wolfer, Betty Palmer, Wilma Stepler.  How fortunate we are to be blessed 
with people willing to carry on the work of the Lord as we continue to make memories. 


